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Robert Gregory 1727-1810 Wilt 28 Aug 1810 ptov Z4Sept 1810

of Coole (purchased 1768) Galway & Berners Steet, Middx d 1 Sept 1810

MP for Maidstone 1768-74 and for Rochester L774'84
Director HEICS 1769-83 and Chairmat 1782 tntimate friend of Rockingham, Fox and Burke

X'riends and Trustees
Richard Earl of Clancarty Richard Trench 2nd Eart Clancarty 1767-1837

m1796 Henrietta Staples -1847 dof Robert Staples sis Mary/Our Thomas

Charles Vereker Charles Vereker 1768-1842 2nd Viscount Gort Colonel Limerick Militia
of Lough Cutra Castle aka Loughcooter

Saint George Daly St George Daly d 1829 sof James Daly/Catherine Gore bro Richard/Martha Fiott
m Louisa Gore dof Richard GorellMartha Fiott sof Ralph Gore 4Bt

James Daly James Daly of Carrownekelly & Dunsandle House bro St George Daly

Wife Maria Gregory dec'd Maria Auchmuty dof Arthur of Briansford

Sons and Executors
RobertGregory RobertGregory 1754-1814 d6Dec lSl4Indiaum HEICSBengalCivilservice

Col Mordaunt's partner in cockfight 1786 against Nabob Oudu
Inherited only 8300 yearly rent due to his propensity for gaming

Richard Gregory Richard Gregory 176l-1839 d 3 Aug 1839 dsp FRS PSA Lt Life Guards
Endowed Harrow School Library Founded Gregory Scholarship
ml Isabella Nimmo m2 Christine Steer

Wiltam Gregory William Gregory 1762-1840 d 13 April 1840 Dublin Excise Commissioner
m 1 Oct 1789 Ann Trench -1833 d 21 Nov 1833 dof Wm Trench lE Clancarty

Daughter in law
Lady Anne Gregory Ann Trench -1833 dof William Trench lE Clancarty/Ann Gardiner

m I Oct 1789 William Gregoqy 1762-1840sof RobertiMarttraAuchmuty
Grandsons
Robe* Gregory Robert Gregory 1790-1847 b 6 Oct 1790 sof William Gregory/Ann Trench

m 1815 Elizabeth O'Hara 1799-l875dof Robert O'Hma of Ratreen

WillamGregory WilliamGregory 1792-1878 b23June 1792 d 18Nov 1878 sofWmGregory/AnnTrench
m 18 Aug 1817 Ann Levinge dof Sir Charles Levinge 5 Bt Knockdrin Castle

bro Mark A Levinge/Caroline Lyons sis Mmgaret C LyonVSamuel Auchmuty
Daughter
Margaret Rees Margaret Gregory widow dec'd

m Mr Rees 1 Anna Maria Frances Rees

Granddaughters
Anna Maria Frances Rees Dau of Margaret Gregory/Ivfr Rees

Anne Gregory Ann Gregory 1793-1868 dof William Gregory/Ann Trench
m Lt Col R Johnston Walsh of Ballykilcavan

Relation
Robert O'Hara of Raheen His dau Elizabeth O'Hara 1799-1875

m 1815 Robert Gregory 1790-1847 sof William Gregory/Ann Trench
James O'Hara Eldest son of Robert O'Hara of Raheen

Richard Martin of Ross, keland & Elizabeth Martin wife of Richard Martin
John Morris of Baker Streeq Porftnan Squre & Sarah Morris wife of John Morris
Godson
Robert Gregory Morris son of John and Sarah Morris

Senants Anne Moxley, Patrick Silk & Rachel Silk wife of Patrick Silk
Bufler Sarnuel Gover

Executor
Alexander Marsden Dublin excise commissioner

Witnesses Thomas Collins of Berners Street
J Rennell of Suffolk Street, Middlesex Hospital
Alexander Murray of Lincotrns Inn



Gregory Z
George Gregory Captain co Derry
m Mary Fullerton -1710
Henry Gregory Galway
m Mary Shaw dof Robert Shaw Newford co Galway
1 Robert Gregory 1727-1810 Will 28 Aug 1810 prov 24 Sept 1810d 1 Sept 1810

Galway Coole, 56 Berners St London HEICO Dir 1769-83 Chairman 1782 MP Maidstone & Rochester
m Maria Auchmuty m lndia dof Arthur Auchmuty of Briansford co Longford
1 Robert Gregory 1754-1814 um HEICO Bengal Civil service d 6 Dec 1814 lndia
2 Richard Gregory 1761-1839 FRS PSA Lt Life Guards d 3 Aug 1839

m1 lsabella Nimmo m2 Christine Steer Endowed Harrow School Library Founded Gregory scholarship
3 William Gregory 1762-1UO Under Secretary State Dublin Excise Commissionerd 13 April 1840

m 1789 Ann Trench -1833 m 1 Oct 1789 d 21 Nov 1833
bro Richard 2E Clancarty 1767-1837 ofs William Trench 1E Clancarty
m Henrietta Staples -1847 dof John Staples sis Mary Staples/Our Thomas

1 Robert 1790-1847 b 6 Oct 1790
m 1815 Elizabeth O'Hara 1799-1875 bro James O'Hara ofs Robert O'Hara of Raheen, Galway
1 William Henry Gregory 1817-1892 Gov Ceylon Trustee National Gallery'Gregory Clause'd 6 March 1892
m2 1880 Augusta Perse 1852-1932 m 4 Mar 1880 Lady Gregory Abbey Theatre, Dublin
m1 1872 Elizabeth Clay -1873 m '11 Jan 1872 d 28 June 1873 dof Sir William Clay 1 Bt

2 William Gregory 1792-1878 Rector Fiddown co Kilkenny b 23 June 1792 d 18 Nov 1878
m 1817 Ann Levinge m 18 Aug 1817 dof Sir Charles Levinge 5 Bt Knockdrin Castle

bro Mark A Levinge/Caroline Lyons sis Margaret C Lyons/SamuelAuchmuty sof Samuel Ballymahon
3 Ann Gregory 1793-1868 b 5 Dec 1793 d 23 Aug 1868

m Mr R Johnston Walsh Ballykilcavan Lt Col
4 Margaret Gregory natural daughter by a Hindustanee lady

m 1797 Nathaniel Penry Rees sof Abraham Rees author New Encyclopeidia Professor of Theology
1 Anna Maria Frances Rees
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Robert Gregory Papers

Robert Gregory 1727-1810 b keland d. I Sept 1810 London only sofHenry Gregory and Mary Shawe

1746 left Ireland aged 19 went to India as a free merchant
1752 mMaria Auchmuty 1734-1764 dau of an East India Company official
1754 b.Robert 1754-1814 EICO Bengal Civil Service. cock-fighting disinherited 1784. d.India 6 Dec 1814

l76l b.Richard 1761-1839 Lt Life Guards
1762 b.William 1762-1840 b.India d.Phoenix Pk Dublin

1766 arrived England educ Harrow and Trinity College Cambridge B.A 1783. M.A 1797

1781 admitted 16 May student of the Inner Temple
1766 returned England settled Kent with considerable fortune also with son William 1762-1840
1768 seat in Parliament as a supporter of the Earl of Rockingham
17 68- 17 7 4 represented Maidstone
1774-1784 sat as a member for Rochester
1769-1778, 1775-1779 and 1780- 1782. served as a Director of the East India Company
1782 April to July 1782 Chairman of the Court of Directors but forced to resign owing to ill health

1789 William 1762-1840
m Ann Trench-1833 bro Richard 2E Clancarty/Henrietta Staples dof John Staples sis Mary/Our Thomas

1797 Margaret Gregory nat dau by Hindustanee lady m Nathaniel Perrry Rees

l8l0 d. I Sept London

Arthur Auchmuty 17 30-17 93

1759 sailed for India
1767 mUrsual da Cruz 1744-1818 in Calcutta
WA b Robert Alex Gregory Ahmuty in Calcutta Barrister

Robert Gregory 1727-1810 b Ireland d. I Sept 1810 London only sof Henry Gregory and Mary Shawe

1746 left Ireland aged 19 went to India as a free merchant
1752 mMaria Auchmuty 1734-1764 dau of an East India Company official
1754 b.Robert 1754-1814 EICO Bengal Civil Service. cock-fighting disinherited 1784. d.India 6 Dec 1814

The Court of the Mayor of Calcutta
originally instituted for the trial of mercantile causes which arose in city and neighbourhood

28 Sept 1763 letter of attorney of John Burnell with associated affidavit and certificate:
(a) Certificate of Robert Gregory, esquire, Mayor of Calcutta that Pachal Dessa is a person of good credit, and

that his affidavit was sworn before him.
(b) Affidavit of Paschal Dessa, clerk to William Magee, swearing that he saw John Burnell deliver the annexed

letter of attorney.
(c) Letter of attorney of John Burnell, recently of Farnsfiel{ Nottinghamshire and now of Calcutt4 appointing
his sister, Elizabeth (later Elizabeth Finch), to receive all sums of money due to hiq empowers her to dispose of
his property in Holbeac[ Lincolnshire; also ernpowers her to appoint an additional attorney if she requires
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The House of Gregory

Sir John Keane: I move:-
That the Seanad invites an explanation from the Minister for the Co-ordination of Defensive Measures in regard to
the attitude adopted towards the censorship of the book entitled The House of Gregory.

I find among certain Senators and members of the public who have seen this notice of motion considerable ignorance
of what it involves. That perhaps is natural, but I should like to say at the outset that it involves matters of very grave
Constitutional import and I do hope that I shall have the attention and the sympathy of the House in what I have to
say. ln that connection, I make an appeal that members of the House will approach this matter more in the spirit of
jurymen than from any standpoint of Parry allegiance. I think you [711] will find that those remarks are justified
when you hear the case as it develops.

"The family of Gregory originated in England. Members came over and settled in Ireland where they acquired
estates. One of them took a considerable part in the defence of Derry and afterwards settled in Kerry, while one of his
sons preferred Galway.
The latter was father of Robert GregorT who became chairman of the East India Company who it is said left
Galway as a stowaway but he had introductions to prominent persons in India and through these obtained a
writership and clerkship in the company. He managed to amass a fortune and when little over 40 he refurned
to England and thencefonvard lived a life of affluence.

A descendant in the last century who served as Governor of Ceylon and an English M.P was the husband of the
famous Augusta Lady Gregory who having survived her husband for several decades, died only a few years ago.
The author of this family memoir was a cousin of Sir V/illiam Gregory. He became a student of Trinity College and
graduated there in Arts and Law and joined the old R.I.C. as a cadet. He was stationed in North Kerry during part of
the 'Troubles' and subsequently in Antrim. While in Kerry he had a day's fishing under the protection of an I.R.A.
leader. Unfortunately he landed not a single fish. If he did, he would have it preserved as a fish poached by a police
officer without a licence or the permission of the owner, under the auspices of an I.R.A. man. In the North he did not
frnd people so accorrmodating. He was asked by a fly-tying fanatic to secure feathers of a game-cock killed in
November. As a police o{Iicer, Mr. Gregory's duty was to put down cock-fighting. But he could not let the angling
friend down. He made approaches to the proper quarters through the proper ctrannels but there was nothing doing.
The Northern cock-fighters were not as trustful or obliging as the Kerryman The book contains grim and [736]
humorous reminiscences of troubled times in Ireland as well as memoirs of the author's ancestors."

Such a book might have been dull. It mrght have been a collection of pedigrees and genealogies but fortunately the
Gregorys do not lend themselves to dullness and so we have a book which is not merely a pious family record but a
book which holds out great promise of entertainment to the people of Ireland who read it. They will read there of
cock-fighting and of duelling, of horse races, of fishing and of shooting-things [751] which the Irishman likes. They
will read of an lrishman who left Ireland as a cabin boy or stowaway and who rose to the position of head of
the East India Company

Seonod Eireonn - Volume 28 - 21 February, Ig44 - Censorship- ... ... Whqt are the facts about the censorship of The Htruse of
Gregoryfrom the legal ... Senqtor Sir John Keone qdmitted that, but itwas glossed over and suppressed as ...
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The University of Nottingham
Library Manuscripts and Special Collections
Catalogue of Papers of
William Henry Cavendish Bentinck, 3rd Duke of Portland

Letters from Robert Gregory 1727-1810 IIEICS MP Rochester m Maria Auchmuty

15 Aug 1770 PwF 4383

Letter from Robert Gregory, London, to [W.H.C. Cavendish-Bentinck], 3rd Duke of Portland; 15.8.1770
Refers to his failed attempts to obtain a 4th Mate's place for Mr Scoclough?; assures the duke that he will continue
trying to obtain a berth for him. 2 ff

23 Aprlll77O PwF4384
Letter from Robert Gregory, Upper Brook Street, to [W.H.C. Cavendish-Bentinck], 3rd Duke of Portland;
Acknowledges receipt of the duke's letter recommending Captain Sowerby; would be pleased if he can be of use to
hirn, however thinks the officers have already been fixed on; assures him he will do all he can to assist Captarr
Sowerby.2 ff

3 Sept 1772 PwF4385
Letter from Robert Gregory, Chigwell [Essex], to [W.H.C. Cavendish-Bentinck], 3rd Duke of Portland; 3.9.1772
Acknowledges receipt of the duke's letter and expresses concern about his attack of gout;
is sorry Mr Sholar has written to the duke; has asstned him he will do all he can to obtain an appoinment for him 2 ff

8 Oct 1774 Pw F 4386
Letter from Robert Gregory, Rochester [Kent], to [W.H.C. Cavendish-Bentinck], 3rd Duke of Portland; 8.10.1774
lnforms the duke of his success at Rochester, states that both he and IVIr Eatton have been returned; gives details
ofthe majoriy 2tr

22 Jily 1715 PwF 4387
Letter from Robert Gregory, Gort [Galway keland] to IWHC Cavendish-Benxnck] 3rd Duke of Portland;
Acknowledges receipt of the duke's letter and says he would be pleased to be of service to anyone he recommends;
comments that unfortunately there is no prospect of achieving Mr Erskine's wishes in the East India Company as

things stand at present; will be able to judge matters better when he returns England. 2 ff

14 Sep 1795 PwF4388
Letter from Robert Gregory, Cool [Galwayr lreland], to [W.H.C. Cavendish-Bentinck], 3rd Duke of Portland;
Writes to inform the duke about the state of County Galway; states that'a great proportion of the Common People are
ready for any mischief; mentions disturbances which have been spreading; notes that several people have been
arrested and two found gurlty; notes that there has been no 'open act of violence' rn the south west of the county;
thinks the poor are being encouraged by a certain type of persorq only to be fourrd in heland 'that call themselves
Gentlemen without a single Qualification to Intitle them to'that Distinction';
comments that these people manage to keep themselves out of reach of the law. Notes that the alleged cause for the
disturbance is 'the High Price of lands let to the poor, opression in the exaction of the Tythes and the Low wages of
labourers'; claims that there is no such cause for complaint in County Galway; explains why this is his belief; has
stated to his tenants what will happen to them if they are guilty of disturbing the peace; assures the duke that propertied
men of all religious persuasions are attached to the king's government;
congratulates the duke on fhe marriage of the Marquess of Titchfield;
concludes by noting that only three of the recruits [of the East India Company] sent out on the 'Brilliant' arrived at
Bombay; says Robert Wright was not among them. 2 ff



Charles Vereker 2nd ViscountGort lT6&1842

William Smyth of Dundrum co Down
:Mary Dowdall
I Thomas 1650-1725 Bishop of Limerick
:Dorothea Burgh dof Ulysses Burgh Bishop of Armagh
1 Charles Smyth 1693-1784
:1728 Elizabeth Prendergast dof Sir Thomas Prendergast 1 Bt Gort co Galway
1 Juliana Smyttr 1735-1811

: 1759 Thomas Vereker 1737-1801 of Roxborough sof Henry Vereker & Anne Osborne.
1 Charles Vereker ll68-1E42 inherited the title from his uncle John Prendergast-Smyth

and became 2nd Viscount Gort of Gort co Galway
2 Dorothea Smyth 1737-1739
3 Elizabeth Smyth 1738-

:1757 William Newton Colonel 88th Regiment Govemor of Senegal
4 Thomas Smyth 1740-1785 dsp
5 John Prendergast-Smyth 174l-1817 lst Viscount Gort Colonel Limerick Militia MP for Limerick

1760 in lieu of his patronynmic, he assumed the name of Prendergast as heir to his maternal uncle
Sir Thomas Prendergast 2nd Bt MP but in 1785 resumed Smyth as an additional zurname

1810 created Bmon Kiltarton of Gort co Galway
1816 created lst Viscount Gort of Gort
1817 John Prendergast-Smyth died unmarried his titles passing to his nephew Charles Vereker 1768-1842

6 Charles Lennox S*yth 1742-1782 dsp

Antrim kish Houses Bence Jones
Gort Galway Lough Cufra Castle aka Loughcooter
Vereker 1811+ built by Col Charles Vereker

Gort Galway Coole Park
Gregory 1770+ built by Robert Gregory East India Nabob



Robert Gregory 177+181o.

Biographical note: Robert Gregory 0727 -1810) was bom in heland. He made his fortune as a merchant in India.
ln 17 66 he settled in Kent England and served as a member of the British Parliarnent ( I 768- I 784). He also served
as a director of the East Lrdia Company (1769-1782) and as chairman of the Court of Dire,ctors in 1782. He
mamied Maria Auchmuty and they had three sons, Robert (1754-1814), fuchard (1761-1839), and William
(1766-1840), and one daughter, Margaret.

Abstact:
The series consists of papers of Robert Gregory from 1774-1810. The papers rnclude correspondence; official
records such as minutes, reports, and financial papers; and printed material relating to his service as a director at

the East India Company. The correspondence (bulk 1778-1783) contains letters from various individuals reporting
on the business of the East India Company and its activities in India during the English occupation and particularly
drnmg the Maratha Wars. The official records of the East India Company include minutes of the Cotrrt of
Directors (June-Sept.l779), financial reports and records from Bengal (1777-1784), a summary of proceedings

relative to Rajah Cheyle Sing (1775), an account of sums of money givcn by the Nabob of Arcot for bringing
about the revolution (1776), a brief state of the British affairs in India from January 1 to November 30,1780, and
a holograph copy of a treaty of peace with the Nabob Tippoo Sultatm Bahauder ( 1 784).

Personal author: Gregory, Robert, 1729?-1810.
Title: Robert Gregory papers, 177+l8l0.
Plrysical description: .5 linear ft. (in 1 box)
Index notes: Findrng aid available in repository.

Organizatior/arrang. : Arranged by record type.
Preferred citation: Robert Gregory papers, Gregory family papers. Special Collections Departrnent"
RobertW. Woodruff Library, Emory Uruversi5,.
Corporate subject: East krdia Company

Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia
Robert W WoodruffLibmry



ConnaughtJoumal
Obituary April1840
The Right Hon William Gregory for many years Under Secretary of State in irelan{ has paid the debt of nature.
Full of years and of honours, his grey hairs have descended to the grave, and in the joyful expectation of the
resurrection of the just, he rests from the labours of a well spent life. We write buy an obituary and not a memoir;
else could we dilate with pleasure to ourselves, and with profit to our readers also, on the integrity of purpose the
clearness of intellect, the knowledge of the world, the capacity in men and things, which distinguished this excellent
gentleman as a public functionary, and placed him for efficienry in oflice far beyond all rivalry. No man knew the
country better than he did. His discernment kept him from all deceptiorq his resolution from weakness or
inconsistency-his tact and temper from preciptance or blunder. The good rejoiced in his protection-the weak trembled
at his vigilance. In the domestic and social circle, we are guilty of no exaggeration in saying that there never lived an

individual who enjoyed more largely than he, the respect, the confidence, the love of his friends and associates - nor
one whose qualities more richly deserved the sympathies of friendship and the devotion of love. Gentle and

affectionate, polite and affable-intelligent and communicative, his manners won an easy way into the esteem of his
acquaintance; whilst the sterling worth of his nature, and the unvarying integrity of his life rivetted to him the hemts
of all who by congenial disposition, shewed themselves worthy of his regard. Long will such a mrm be mourned by
his country. Deep and lasting will be the tribute of sorrow which his surviving friends will pay to the memory of a
departed spirit whose walk in life had been as much distinguished by public services and was graced by private and
domestic virtue.

A pension of f445 devolves on the Civil List by the death of Right Hon William Gregory of Coole co.Galway,
Ex-Under Secretary for heland, brother-in-law of the late (2nd) Earl of Clancarty,
to whose sister, Lady Anne Trench he was married in 1789

William Gregory 1762-1840
m 1 Oct 1789Lany Anne Trench
1 Robert Gregory 1790-1847

d 13 April 1840 sof Robert Gregory/Ivlartha Auchmuty
d 21 Nov 1833 dof lE Clancarty/Ann Gardiner

b 6 Oct 1790

m 1815 Elizabeth O'Hara 1799-1875 dof Robert O'Hara of Ratreen, co Galway
I William Henry Gregory 1817-1892 d 4 March, 1892
m 1880 Augusta Persse 1852-1932 m 4 March 1880 d 22May 1932 The celebrated Lady Gregory

1 Sir William llenry Gregory 1817-1892 d 4 March 1892
grandson of William Gregory 1766-1840 PC KCMG
educated Harrow and Christ Church, Oxford, which he left without graduating;
Conservative MP Dublin, 184247
supported Poor Relief Act 1847, entailing Gregory Clause called 'Gregoryism' in the kish Felon and refusing relief
to any holding quarter acre or more
High Sherriffof Galway, 1849
devoted to racing - the turf and forced to sell much of his 8,000 acre estate to pay garnbling debts, 1855
Liberal-conssrvative MP, Galway, 1 857-1 87 1

joined Liberals on death of Palmerston 1865
involved in kish agrarian legislation
Chairman of House of Commons Inquiry into accommodation at British MuseurU 1860
Irisl privy councillor, 1871
Governor of Ceylon, I87l-77; KCMG, 1876
m 1880 Augusta Persse Lady Gregory with whom a son Robert b 1881

Trustee of National Gallery 1867-92; posthrunous autobiography, issued by Lady Gregory, 1894.

Lady Gregory was born Isabella Augusta Persse in 1852 in Roxborough House, nem Loughre4 Co. Galway.
At twenty-eight she married Sir WH Gregory then a sixty-three year-old widower, former Governor of Ceylon and
Trustee of the National Gallery and MP for Galway and who had been responsible for measures which compounded
the misery suffered in the Great Famine 1846-1851.They settled in London where the Gregorys' salon was frequented
by Browning, Tennyson, Millais, Henry James, and others. They summered at Coole Park near Gort co Galway in the
barony of Kiltartan which she would later make farnous.
Her husband died in 1892 and shortly afterwards, her {irst visit to Inisheer one of ttre Aran Islands inspired her to
learn Irish and the Hiberno-English dialect of Kiltartan. She met W. B. Yeats in 1896 and commenced collecting
folklore in Kiltartan region with him. She also established an Irish class at Coole schoolhouse.



Ralph Gore -1732 4 Bt Chancellor of Exchequer Speaker House Commons 1729
ml 1705 Elizabeth Colville dof Sir Robert Cotville
m2 Elizabeth Ashe -1741 dof Rev St George Ashe Bishop of Clogher

1 St George Gore St George -1746 dsp 5 Bt Gore assumed surname St George
m 1743 Alice Burton dof Francis Burton

2 Ralph Gore 1725-1802 6 Bt Gore Earl of Ross
m21773 Alice Clements m 22 Od 1773 dof Nathaniel Clements
m1 1754 Catherine Connolly -1771 dsp m 23 Feb 1754 dof Hon Wm Connolly, Castletown/Ann Wentworth

sis Henrietta Connolly -1771
m 1764 John Staples 1736-1820 sis MaryStaples/Our Thomas
1 Henrietta Staples -1A47 d 30 Sept 1847
m Richard Trench 1767-1837 2 Earl Clancarty
sis Ann Trench -1833
m 1789 Wm Gregory 1762-1840 sof Robert Gregory/Martha Auchmuty

3 Richard Gore 1728- Sandymount co Wicklow b 16 Oct 1728
m 1766 Martha Fiott -1773 dof Rev Thomas Fiott of Guernsey
I Louisa Gore -1816

m St George Daly -1829 sof James DalylCatherine Gore Judge of the Kings Bench
4 Catherine Gore

m174 James Daly -1769 m 14 June 1744 Will 1769 prov 1 July 1769
Built 1744 Dunsandle House Galway sof Denis Daly/Elinor French dof George French, Frenchbrook

1 Denis Bowes Daly 1747-1791 Speaker lrish House Commons d 10 Oct 1791 MP co Galway
m 1780 Henrietta Maxwell -'1852 dof Robert Maxwell 1 E Farnham
1 James Daly 1st Lord Dunsandle & Clarconnel

2 Ralph Daly Rev
m Miss Kilkelly

3 Peter Daly Lt-Col
m Amelia Barber

4 James Daly
m Miss Justice/Justin of Kanturk co Cork

5 Richard Daly -1793 Mayor of Galway d 7 Aug 1793 ex'tor bro St George Daly
m Sarah Young family of Sir Peter Young of Auldbar

6 St George Daly -1829 Judge of the Kings Bench lreland
m Louisa Gore -1816 dof Richard Gore/Martha Fiott

7 Elizabeth m Peter Daly of Lismore
8 Ellen

/-rr.-1



Richard Trench
m 1732 Frances Power
1 Ann-Power Trench -1835

m Charles Gobbe 1756-1798 MP for Swords bur Weston, Bath Friend of Our Thomas
sof Lady Elizabeth Cobbe Lived22 Marlborough Bldgs bro George Beresford 1M Waterford

2 William PK Trench 1741-1805 1st Earl Clancarty
m 1762 Ann Gardiner -1829
1 Richard Trench 1767-1837 2nd Earl Glancarty

m 1796 Henrietta Staples -1847 dof Robert Staples 1736-1820 sis Mary/Our Thomas
21789 Ann Trench -1833 m 1 Oct 1789 d 21 Nov 1833

m 1789 Wm Gregory 1762-1ld/l0 Dublin Excise Commissioner d 13 April 1840
sof Robert Gregory/Maria Auchmuty

Charles Cobbe 1686-1765 Archbishop of Dublin Built Newbridge House 1737
m Dorothea Levinge m1 Sir John Rawdon Bt of Moira

dof Sir Richard Levinge Bt Speaker House Commons Chief Justice of Common Pleas in lreland
1 Thomas Cobbe 1733-1850 MP for Swords Colonel of Militia
m 1751 Lady Elizabeth Beresford bro George Beresford 1M Waterford ofs Marcus Beresford 1E Tyrone
1 Charles Cobbe 1756-1798 MP for Swords bur Weston, Bath Friend of Our Thomas
m Anne-Power Trench -1835 bro 1st Earl Clancarty William PK Trench 1741-1805
1 Charles Cobbe 1781-1857 m 1809 Frances Conway -1847

1 Frances PowerCobbe 1822-1904
2 George Cobbe'1782- m Amelia Barton Lt-Col RHA
3 Henry William Cobbe -1823 Vicar of Templeton
4 Thomas Alexander Cobbe 1788-1836 m Nuzeer Begum dot Azeez Khan Cashmere Lt-Col HEICS
5 William Power Cobbe 1790-1831 m Elizabeth Sharkey Captain RN

Swords gives the title of viscount to the family of Molesworth
The succession of members of parliament for this borough:
1761 Thomas Cobbe and Hamilton Gorges
1769 John Hatch and John Damer
1776 Thomas Cobbe and Gharles King
1783 Charles Cobbe and John Hatch
1790 John Claudius Beresford and Lt-Gen Eyre Massey
1797 Francis Synge and Charles Cobbe Esqrs
1798 Francis Synge and Colonel Marcus Beresford. The former voted against the Union



Page 2of2 (l
James Daty of Dunsandle, co Galway Will dated 1769 prov 1 July 1769
now of Dominick Street, Dublin
Exfracted from the Regtstry of His Majestys court of Perogative In keland

Wife
Catherine Daly Catherine Gore dof Ralph Gore 4 Bt/Elizabeth Ashe

bro Richard Gore 1728- of Sandymount co Wicklow
m1766 Martha Fiott-1773 dof Rev Thomas Fiott of Guemsey
1 Louisa Gore -1816
m St George Daty -1829 Judge oftte Kings Bench keland

Children
1 Denis De,nis Bowes Daly 1747-L79L d 10 Oct 1791 Speaker hish House Commons

m 1780 Hendetta Maxwell -1852 dof Robert Marwell 1 E Farnham
1 Jarnes Daly 1782-1847 1st Lord Dunsandle & Clan Conal
m 1808 MariaElizabeth Smyth -1866 dof Sir Skeffington Smyth 1 Bt

2 Ralph Ralph Daly Rev Warden of Galway
m Miss Kilkelly

3 Paer Jarnes Peter James Daly Lt-Col Army
m Amelia Bmber dof General Barber

4 James Jarnes Daly
m Miss Justice/Justin of Kanturk co Cork - 13 kids

5 Richard Richard Daly -1793 d 7 Aug 1793 Mayor of Galway ex'tor bro St George Daly
m Sarah !6rmg of family Sir Pster Young of Auldbar

6 St George St George Daly -1829 Judge of the Kings Bench keland
m Louisa Gore -1816 dof Richard Gore/Ivlartha Fiott

7 Elizabeth Elizabeth
m Peter Daly of Lismore

8 Ellen Ellen unm

Executors
Catherine Daly Wife
Denis Bowes Daly Son

Witnesses
James O'Hara
Thomas DaIy



tl
James DaIy of Dunsandle WiII dated 1769 prov 1 JuIy 1759
Extacted from the Registry of His Majestys court of Perogative ln keland

In the name of God amen. I James Daly of Dunsandle in the County of Gatway Esq., but now resident in
Dominick street in the city of Dublin being in a weak state of health but of sound and disposing mind and memory,
thanks be to God for the same, do make my last will and testament in manner and form following, hereby revoking
all former wills at any time heretofore by me made and frst I bequeath my soul to Heaven, Hoping that whatever
advantages reserved for the souls of the decease{ I may through the Mercy of God partake of the benefits of thenr, as

I am not conscious thro the whole course of my life of having acted by any of my fellow creatures in such a manner
as should incur the Divine displeasure, but having behaved with regard to others with as much Beneficence as

common sense and prudence permitted me, and whereas by the settlement made previous to my marriage with
Catherine Daly othelvise Gore my present much beloved wife a sum of eight thousand pounds is charged upon
certain lands and estate therein mentioned and provided for the portions of my younger children to be paid to and

distributed among them at such times and in such shares and proportionq and with such yearly interest for their
respective maintenance until such portions should become payable as I should think fit to limit or appoint,

and whereas I have at this time living seven younger children by the said Catherine, to wit two daughters and
five younger sons, now in pursuance and execution of the power so vested in me, it is my will and I do hereby limit
and appoint that the sum of two thousand pounds part of the said of eight thousand pounds shall be raised and paid to
my eldest daughter Elizabeth Daly at her obtaining the age of twenty one years or day of marriage, which soever
shall first happen, in part of the portion which I intend her together with interest for the same at the rate of five
pounds per celrtrum from the day of my death till the said sun shall become payable, and I hereby firther limit and
appoint that the remaining part of the said eight thousand pounds shall be raised and equally divided between my
youngest daughter Ellen Daly and my yorrnger sons Ralph, Peter, James, Richard and St George Daly share

and share alike, and that the said Ellen's proportion thereof shall be paid to her at her age of twenty years or day of
marriage which soever strall first happen and that my said younger sons proportions thereof shall be paid to thern at
their respective ages of twenty one years in part of the portions which I intended for them and my said daughter
Ellen, and I do further limit and appoint that my said daughter Ellen and such of my said younger sons as are now
under the age of twelve years strall from the day of my death have and be paid yearly for their maintenance interest at
the rate of three pounds per centrum for the respective proportions till they shall respectively obtain to the age of
twelve and from thaf time till ttrcy shall respectively attain their age of sixteen years interest at the rate of four pormds
per centrum, and from thence interest at the rate of five pounds per centrum till their said respective proporations
shall become payable aforesaid.

And I do firther limit and appoint that such of my said younger sons as have already obtained the age of twelve
years, and are now under the age of sixteen years, shall from the day of my death have and be paid yearly for their
maintenance interest at the rate of four pounds per centrum for their respective proportions till they shall respectively
obtain the age of sixteen years and from thence iriterest at the rate of five pounds per centrum till their said respective
portions shall become payable as aforesaid - and I do firther limit and appoint that such of my younger sons as have
already obtained the age of sixteen years shall from the day of my death have and be paid for their maintenance
interest at the rate of five pounds per centrum for their respective proportions until the same shall become payable as

aforesaid, but if any of my said younger children should happen to die before their respective shares of the said sum
of eight thousand pounds shall be become payable it is my will and I do hereby limit and appoint that the share or
shares proportion or proportions of the younger child or younger children so happening to die shall go and be equally
divided among the survivors or survivor of thenu and shall be paid at the same time with their original proportions
and in such manner and with such rates of interest, according to the respective ages of such survivor or survivors as

herein before appointed to be paid for their original proportions, and whereas by the said settlsment a power is also
reserved to me to QOOOOOQ and incurnber several lands and estates therein for ()OOOOQ putpose me,ntioned with
any sum not exceeding ten thousand pounds to be applied and disposed of in such manner QOOOOQ such uses as I
shall think fit. Now it is my will QOOOQ in pursuance and execution of the said power ()OOOQ the power in me
vested accordingly charge and ()OO{) the said land and estates with the said sum of QOOO{) thousand pounds
sterling and it is my will, and I do hereby QOOQ limit and appoint that the same shall be raised levied and applied as
hereinafter mentioned that is to say, I QOOOq and appoint that the sum of three thousand pounds part of the said
sum of ten thousand pounds shall be raised and paid to my said eldest daughter Elizabeth, and the sum of two
thousand pounds other part thereof shall be raised and paid to my daughter Ellen, and that the lsmaining five
thousand shall be raised and paid in equal shares to my said younger sons in order to complete the portions and
provisions which I intend for my saidyounger children and
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I do hereby direct and appoint that the said respective sums shall be paid to thern respectively at such time, and in
such manner as their respective shares of the said sum of eight thousand pounds are herein before appointed to be
paid and that in the meantime - till the said sum shall become payable that my daughter Elizabeth shall from the day
of my death have and be paid yearly interest at the rate of five ponds per centrum for her said proportion thereot and
that my said daughter Ellen, and my said yolmge,r sons shall have and be paid yearly from the day of my death

interest at the several rates herein before mentione{ according to their respective ages in the same manner as is herein
before appointed QOOOQ respect to their shares of the said sum of eight thousand pounds, and in case of the death

of any of my said younger children before their said proportions of the said sum of ten thousand pounds shall

become payable, it is my will and I do hereby appoint that the share or shares of the child or children so dying shall
go to and among the survivor or survivors in such manner and be paid at such times and with such interest and in
such manner as is herein before appointed to be done with respect to their shmes of said eight thousand pounds upon
the like contingencies happening thern, I devise and bequeath to my said dearly beloved wife all my plate china

household goods and furniture now remaining in Dublin or at my house at Dunsandle for her own use and I also

devise and bequeath unto her the sum of one thousand five hundred pormds to be paid to her as soon as conveniently
may be after my decease of the readiest part of my personal estate in order to provide for her maintenance and

support till the highest QOOOQ of her OOOO0 shall become payable and the better to e,nable her to provide herself
with a convenient house for her habitation either in Dublin or where ever else she shall choose to reside after my
death.

And I do hereby devise and bequeath all the rest and residue of my personal estate and effects of what kind and
nature soever to Denis Daly my eldest son subject to the palmrent of all my just debts, and I do hereby appoint my
said wife and my said son Denis executors of this my will, and I do hereby also appoint said dear wife guardian
to such of my children now under age till ftey shall respectively attain the age of twenty one years, and in case that
my wife should happen to die before me or during the minority of any of my said children, I do in that ()OOOC)

appoint that my said son Denis shall be their guardian in the place of my said wife. I do hereby recommend it to my
said son Denis when and as soon as my said younger sons respectively come to age to make such addition to the
provisions hereby made for them not exceeding one thousand potrnds apiece as he shall think reasonable to make for
them or such of them as shall by their conduct and behaviour merit his regard and attention - IN WITNESS whereof I
have hereunto put my hand and seal this --: day of ----- one thousand seven hundred and sixty nins.
James Daty (Seal) signed

Sealed and published by the Testator as and for his last will and testame,nt in the presence of us the named witnesses
who have subscribed and named QOfiA in the presence of the said Testator and in the presence of each other -
James O'IIara, Thomas Daly

The last will and testament of James Daly of punsandle in the county of Galway - but late of the city of Dublin
Esq. Deceased (having )OO( soforth) was proved and approved in Common form of Law and Registered in his
Majestys Court of Prerogative, and the burden of the Executor thereof together with adminisfration of the goods

OOOOOQ of said deceased were granted by the Most Reverend Father also Judge Vc to Catherine Daty othcrrvise
Gore the widow of said deceased, and Denis Daly Esq. The executors named in said will they being firs sworn
personally saving and soforth dated the frrst day of July 1769 and they have to exhibit an inve,ntory an as before the

QOOCQ of January next ensuing. - A true John Hawkins A Hawkins
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Donagh mx oflaragh
1 James Carrownakelly
m Anastasia D'Arcy gdof James Riveagh D'Arcy Vice President of Connaught
1 Denis Daly -1720 Rt hon Mr Justice of Court Common Pleas lreland

m Mary Power dofThomas Power
1 Denis Daly -1729 CarrownakellY
m Elinor French dof George French of Frenchbook co Mayo
1 James Daly -1769 Will 1769 prov 1 July 1769 built 1744 Dunsandle House
ml Bridget Bermingham -1733 dsp d 2 Feb 1733 dof 21st Lord Athenry
m2174tr- Catherine Gore m 14 June 1744 dot Ralph Gore 4BUElizabeth Ashe

bro Richard Gore 1728- of Sandymount co Wicklow b 16 Oct 1728
m 1766 Martha Fiott -1773 dof Rev Thomas Fiott of Guernsey
I Louisa Gore -1816
m St George Daly -1829 Judge of the Kings Bench lreland dof Catherine Gore/James Daly

1 Denis Bowes Daly 1747-1791 Speaker lrish House Commons d 10 Oct 1791 MP co Galway
m 1780 Henrietta Ma,nrell -1852 dof Robert Maxwell 1 E Farnham
I James Daly 1782-1847 1st Lord Dunsandle & Clan Conal b 7 April 1782 d7 Aug 1847
m 1808 Maria Elizabeth Smyth -1866 m 5 March 1808 d 2 Nov 1866 dof Sir Skeffington Edward Smyth

2 Ralph Daly Rev Warden of Galway
m Miss Kilkelly

3 Peter James Daly Lt-ColArmy
m Amelia Barber dof General Barber

4 James Daly
m Miss Justice/Justin of Kanturk co Cork - 13 kids

5 Richard Daly -1793 Mayor of Galway d 7 Aug 1793 ex'tor bro St George Daly
m Sarah Young family of Sir Peter Young of Auldbar

6 St George Daty -1829 Judge of the Kings Bench lreland
m Louisa Gore -1816 dof Richard Gore/Martha Fiott

7 Elizabeth
m Peter Daly Lismore

8 Ellen unm
2 Charles Daly m Anne D'Arcy dof Hyacinth D'Arcy of Kitullagh
3 James Daly -1759 Raford d 21 June 1759

m Anastia D'Arcy dof Hyacinth D'Arcy of Kitullagh
1 Denis Daly -1791 Raford d 14 March 1791

m 1735 Lady Anne de Burgh -1794 dof 10 E Claricarde
2 Hyacinth Daly -1782 Dalystown

m 1740 Rose Coghlan
1 Denis Bowes Daly -1821 Dalystown Rt Hon MP Galway d 17 Dec 1821

m 1780 Mary C Ponsonby -1781 lic 26 Aug 1780 dof Elizabeth Cavendish dof 3D Devonshire &
Speaker lrish H of Commons John Ponsonby sof Brabazon Ponsonby 1 E Bessborough

2 Margaret Daly
m 1782 Skeffington Ed Smyth Bt lic 1 9 Nov 1 782 sof James Smyth of Mount Henry
1 Maria Elizabeth Smyth -1866 d 2 Nov 1866

m 1808 James Daly 1782-1847 m 5 March 1808 b 7 April 1782 d7 Aug 1847
1st Lord Dunsandle & Clan Conal

2 Elizabeth
m Michael George Prendergast MP Galway

James Daly and bro St George Daly
Friends of Robert Gregory 1717-1810
mentioned in his Will28 Aug 1810 prov 24 Sept 1810

Whyte's Academy 79 Grafton Street Dublin now Bewleys Cafe
A private school began in 1755 taught by nine clergymen with SamuelWhyte as principal
attended by James, Richard, Elizabeth and Ellen Daly children of James Daly & Catherine Gore
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Letter dated2T Oct 1950 from Bowes Daly of Dunsandle Estate, PO kinga Tanganyika
I trust the following facts I have copied from my family tree may be what you want: James Daly of Carrownekelly
aftenvards built & lived in Dunsandle. He married firstly Bridget daughter of 2nd Lord Anthony, who died without
issue. He married secondly, Catherine, daughter of Sir Ralph Gore who afterwmds became the Earl of Rosse. (Sir
Ralph Gore, the father, was Chancellor of the Exchequer & Speaker of the House of Commons). By Catherine he had
6 sons &2 daaghters, Denis, Ralph, Peter, James, Richard, & St George, Elizabeth & Ellen,
Denis was Speaker of the Irish flouse of Commons - Grattan's Parliament. He married Lady Henrietta Maxwell,
daughter of Earl of Farnham. He had 2 sons and 6 daughters. The eldest son James became the lst Lord Dunsandle &
Clarconnel & he had 5 sons & 2 daughters. The title of Dunsandle died out n 1907 on the death of the 3rd Baron &
my father came into Dunsandle demesne & half the whole property then about 30,000 acres jointly with his elder
brother who had turned R.C. My grandfather & my family all being Protestants. The only reference I can find to the
Coughlan family is that Hyacinth Daly (who died 1782) son of a Denis Daly, a nephew of the Carrownekelly one,

married the daughter and heiress of the MacCoughlan & had one son & one daughter, the Rt Honorable Denis Bowes
who married Charlotte Pousonby & Mary who married Sir Skeffington Smith.
There has been a book published about 15 yrs ago by an American Professor called the History of the O'Dalys, but I
have not got it out here. If you know of any affluent Dalys, (if there is such a person in these days) I have a very fine
portrait of the Rt Hon Denis Daly speaker in Grattan's parliament & husband of Lady H. Maxwell, by Sir Joshua
Reynolds. I want f,10,000 for it. I am afraid I am also having to put up for sale my old home at Dunsandle it was built
1744. A sad wrench. Yrs sincerely Bowes Daly

Denis DaIy -1729 of Grayford
m Elinor French dof George French. Frenchbrook co Mayo
James Daly of Carrownekelly -1769 Dunsandle House co Galway he built 1744 Will1769 prov I July 1769
ml Bridget Birrningham dsp dof 22nd Lord Athenry
m214 June 1744 Catherine Gore dof Sir Ralph Gore Earl of Rosse
I Rt Hon Denis Bowes Daly 1747-1791Lady Henrietta Ma<well Speaker of the Irish House of Commons
2 Reverend Ratph Daty
3 Lt Col Peter Daly
4 James Daly bc 1755
5 Richard Daly bc1757-7 Aug 1793
6 Rt Hon St George Daly c1751-1829
7 ElizabethDaly
8 Ellen Daly

m Miss Killkelly
m AmeliaBarber
Miss Justice/Justin of Kanturk Co Cork and had 13 children
m Sarah Young Mayor of Galway
m Louise Gore the sister of Sir Ralph Gore
m Peter Daly of Linsmore

4th son James Daly bc1755 I feel he m Miss Justice/Justin of Kanturk co Cork and had 13 children
5th son Richard DaIy born and died in Dunsandle co Galway. Born c1757 he died August 7, 1793 two years after he
became Mayor of Galway (ref. Betham's will abstracts for Richard Daly of Dunsandle, Executor: St George Daly,
brother) Richard Daly married (c1778) Sarah Young, desce,nded from Sir Peter Young of Auldbar

James and Richard as well as daughters Elizabeth and Ellen "attended Whyters Classical Academy, Dublin a private
school begun in 1755 and taught by nine clergSrrnen, with Samuel Whyte as Principal"

Whyte's Academy Grafton Street Dublin
was located at no 79 and a plaque bears witress to the fact that a great diversrty of famous kishmen were educated
there. It was a unique institution which could produce both Robert Emmett, the great Irish patriot and nationalist who
was executed by the British for his part in the failed rebellion of 1803 - and also Arthur Wellesley, a pillar of the
British establishment (later to become the Duke Of Wellingon). The *idely divergent outlook of both men can be
gleaned from their most quoted remarks. - in the case of Robert Emmet the arch-patriot, who in his farnous speech
from the dock said: 'Let not my Epitaph be written until Ireland is Free' compared with the retort of the Duke Of
Wellington when it was put to the this seemingly arch-typical English aristocrat that he was in fact born in Dublin -
'if I was born in a stable, would that make me a horse?'.

Robert Emmet, From heland
... Robert was educated in Samuel Whyte's academy in Grafton Street located where Bewleys Cafe now stands

Grafton Street
A visit to the street is not complete without a visit to Bewleyrs Cafe a refuge for the foot weary where delicious coffee,
tea and cake are served in surroundings of wood paneling and stained glass. The sffeet named in 1812 for the 2nd Duke
of Grafton (illegitimate son of Charles 2nd) who acted as Lord Lieutenant of keland between the years 17 15 arrrd, 1723
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Colonel Mordaunt's Cock Match 5 April 17E4
by Johan Zoffarry 1733-1810 Oil on canvas (Oc) 1135 x 1498 mm

The painting depicts a cock match between Asaf-ud-daula, Nawab Wazff of Oudh standing in the centre, and Colonel
John Mordaunt standing on the left in white, a keen cock-fighter who had brought out from England game-cocks

which he was confident would defeat native-bred birds. The outcome of the match is unknown. Cock-fighting was

widely regarded as a vicious, ungentlemanly sport.

Captain Robert Smith wrote in the 1830s: 'This barbarous amusernent is a particular favourite with the people of
Lucknow and is as great a source of demoralisation here, as it is in every country where the custom prevails' (quoted

in M. Archer, India and British Portraiture 1770-1825, London 1979 p.L48)

The picture was commissioned rr.1184 by Warren Hastings, the lst Govemor-General of Bengal shortly before
his return to England in 1785. He may have admired a simpler version Zoffany painted for Asaf. Hastings is not in
the picture although his diary records that he was present at Mordaunt's cock fight of 5 April 1784. Zoffany
arrived in Luclnow to work for him on 3 June and was paid 15,000 rupees (about 11,500). The painting was finished
after Hastings's return to England and was despatched to him in February 1788. At one time the picture was thought
to have been lost at se4 and this a copy made by Zoffany, but this is now generally discounted.

Asafs court at Lucknow was the most extravagant of the native courts attraeting numerous European adventurers
lured by the financial prospects and exotic lifestyle. Faiz Bakhsh wrote that Asafs 'natural inclinations and

attachments were for low, ill-bom and base-minded associates ... He delighted in meaningless atnusements and was
immensely pleased with anyone who indulged in filthy language; and the more obscene the conversation was in any
company, the better he was pleased' (quoted in Archer, p.1a3).
The illiterate Mordaunt was a particular favourite. An iilegitimate son of the EarI of Peterborough, he was
commander of the Nawab's bodyguard and leader of court amusements, including the cock-fights. At Lucknow,
Indians and Europeans enjoyed social equality and personal friendship. Many Europeans had Indian wiveg or bibis,
and children.

The cenfral figures of the Lucknow court are portrayed here: Colonel Antoine Polier in a red coat, standing under
the awning, a Swiss officer who was engineer to the Nawab and possessor of several bibis and a nurnber of children;
John Wombwell seated to the right holding a hookatq the East tndia Company's paymaster at Lucknow; and below
them in uniform, seated on the dais the French adventurer Claud Martin.
The notorious Martin kept four wives and was, among other thingg the only man ever known to have successfirlly
performed a surgical operation on himself. Lord Valentia wrote in an account after Martin's death: 'a more
infamous or despicable character ... never existed. He had not a single virtue, though he laboured to assume the
appearance of several' (quoted in Philip Davies, Splendours of the Raj, London 1985, pp.93-a). Standing beside
Wombwell is the artist Ozias Hunphrey with a hand on Zoffany's shouldsr.

Standing at the far right corner, wearing a blue coat and holding a white bird, is Robert Gregory, the assistant to
the Governor-General's representative. GregorT was reportedly cut out of his father's will for cock-frghting.
The rohnd European in white sitting in the right foreground with a fighting-cock, is Lieutenant Golding of the East
India Company's Corps of Engineers.

After its acquisition by the Tate the painting was cleane4 revealing new subtleties of colour, detail and meaning. The
Nawab's state of sexual arousal, his agitated pose and inclination towards his chief minister and favourite bodyguard
Hassan Resa Khan in the ornate red turban) add an erotic dimension to the nature of the cock fight. The vignette just
behind the Nawab shows a bearded Hindu in turban fondling a Moslern boy catamite in the white cap worn by
Moslem msrL to the oufiage of the man in the red turban who must be restrained by a courtier. Lewis Ferdinand
Smith recounted that the Nawab has many adopted children, but none of his own' - despite a harem of 500 beauties -
and that towards his wife of sixteen years he has never firlfilled the duties of a husband' (quoted in Archer, p)a\.
This painting was perhaps Hastings's select joke, a memento of his time in India.
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Robert Shaw Registry of Deeds, Dublin Abstracts of lYills, Volume I, 1708 to 1745.1956.

570 Shaw Robert of Galway, Esq 20 Oct.,1737.
Codicil 2l a$.1727. Nanate,l ll2p.,2 Jarr.1137138.

His wife Alice Shaw als. Croasdaile. Reciting settlement dated 9 Nov. 1706 between Robert Shaw,
senr., and Robert Shaw, junr., son and heir apparent of said Robert, senr., both of Newford, Co.
Galway, Esqrs., on the one part, and Henry Croasdaile, Rinn, Queen's Co., gent. and others of the
other part. His eldest son and heir apparent Thomas Shaw (exor.). His daughters Mercy Shaw and
Elizabeth Shaw. His sons William Shaw, George Shaw, Croasdaile Shaw, John Shaw, Richard Shaw,
Robert Shaw. David Power and John Disney, Esq., to be guardians of such children as were under
age.

Town and lands of Cahirowen in liberty of Athenry, Co. Galway. Lands of Gortnalickey and
Gortnacapah, West Liberties of town of Galway. A house in High Street, Galway. A lease from Capt.
Hugh Montgomery of his estate in town of Athenry. His real and personal estate and leases in Co.
Galway and corxrty of the town of Galway.

Witnesses to will and codicil:
David Power, John Giles, Loughrea, Esq., Matthew Kelleher, Coorheen, gent., both in Co. Galway.

Memorial witnessed by:
Michael Argent and Bartholomew Delandre, clerks to Wm. Parry, Dublin, notary public.
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